

# MEMBER BUSINESS FEEDING SOLUTIONS AMERICA

# Warehouse Activity Plan and Default Bin Picking

Owner of this document is: Scott Wiacek - swiacek@feedingamerica.org

Purpose of this document

This document explains how to set up and use the Warehouse Activity Plan (WAP) in conjunction with Default Bin Picking in Ceres.

Copyright © Feeding America 2017, All Rights Reserved.

This document may be printed and reproduced only by Feeding America and member organizations.

# Table of Contents

PURPOSE
REPLENISHMENT ENHANCEMENTS
INVENTORY PICKS PRIOR TO REGISTERING THE WAP (DEFAULT BIN PICKING)
CONFIGURING CERES FOR DEFAULT BIN PICKING
Using Default Bin Picking
WAREHOUSE ACTIVITY PLAN ENHANCEMENTS
CONTINUOUS WAP SUGGESTIONS FOR RELEASED AGENCY ORDERS
PICK CREATION ENHANCEMENTS
Picking Sequence Numbers
CONFIGURING CERES FOR PICKING SEQUENCE NUMBERS
CYCLE COUNT NOTIFICATIONS       14         CONFIGURING CYCLE COUNT NOTIFICATIONS FOR CERES       15         USING CYCLE COUNT NOTIFICATIONS       16         SMTP MAIL SETUP       18
RELATED TOPICS:

#### Purpose

The Warehouse Activity Plan (WAP) serves as a tool for pick bin replenishment, prior to starting the Pick process, so there is enough inventory in the Pick bins to fulfill the orders for that day. For some food banks, there is not enough pick bin space to move all products down at once, so these changes to the Warehouse Activity Plan (WAP) and the supporting replenishment processes were created. This is a supplement to the Warehouse Activity Plan (WAP) Procedure.

Ceres object release 4.50.00 is required for the functionality documented in this procedure.

## **Replenishment Enhancements**

The following components were adapted to address Pick Bin space constraints when planning Pick bin replenishment and picking:

Warehouse Activity Plan (WAP), Picking Sequences defined for Bins, ADCS hand-held pick functionality Item Setup options

In summary, the WAP improvements are necessary to better facilitate the replenishment and picking process in warehouses with high volume and varying warehouse configurations. The ADCS changes allow for triggering a cycle count during the pick process if there's a discrepancy between what a bin physically contains and what Ceres reflects – this is also tied in with the Voxware integration for those sites using that tool for picking.

The Warehouse Activity Plan (WAP) evaluates the demand for inventory associated with released agency orders and suggests inventory movements from put away bins to pick bins in order to fulfill the orders. After the WAP determines demand for inventory, it generates entries into a Movement Worksheet to replenish picking bins so sufficient product exists in the picking bins when orders are fulfilled. The WAP has been created to make pulling inventory product more efficient by eliminating the need to drop product during the picking process. With the enhancements described here, the food bank can start Picking from the pallets that have already been dropped, while identifying others on the WAP for a Drop on Demand to a default pick bin type flow later in the cycle.

General guidelines on setting up the WAP provided in the partner procedure.

#### **Inventory Picks Prior to Registering the WAP (Default Bin Picking)**

Normally Ceres requires that inventory be available in pick bins in order to make fully qualified inventory suggestions (Location, Zone, Bin, Pallet (if the Item is palletized), and Lot) on the pick documents. In general, this involves releasing Agency Orders, running the Create WAP process, registering the WAP to record the inventory movements to pick bins, and **then** creating the pick documents. With Default Bin Picking Ceres will provide fully qualified inventory suggestions for inventory recorded on the WAP but not moved as yet.

# **Configuring Ceres for Default Bin Picking**

Configuring Ceres to allow for the creation pick documents prior to registering the WAP requires enabling the Allow Default Bin Picking setup option found on the Bin Policies FastTab of the Location Card.

1. To enable this setting go to Departments  $\rightarrow$  Warehouse  $\rightarrow$  Administration  $\rightarrow$  Setup  $\rightarrow$  Locations.



#### 2. Select Locations to display the Location List.



3. Double click the Location you wish to configure for default Bin picking. Locate the Bin Polices FastTab and place a checkmark in the Allow Picks when WAP Exists and Allow Default Bin Picking. Then select a Default Pick Bin Exception option. See Location Overview for more information.

Bin Policies			^
Special Equipment: Bin Capacity Policy: Allow Breakbulk: <b>Ceres</b>	Never Check Ca 👻	<b>Pick</b> Always Create Pick Line: Pick According to FEFO: Ceres	
Consider Pallet Empty %:	0.00	Allow Picks when WAP Exists:	
Consider Pallet Full %:	0.00	Default Pick Bin Exception:	Use WAP Sugges
Default Pallet Qty. on AO Opt.:		No Bin Suggestion on WAP:	
Put-away		Allow Pick from Put-Away Bin:	
Put-away Template Code:		Update Pick Line Bin from WAP:	
Always Create Put-away Line:		ADCS Prevent Pallet Diff Items:	

The Default Pick Bin Exceptions are:

- **Use WAP Suggestion** ١.
- Π. Use WAP Suggestion with Confirmation
- III. Make no Suggestion
- IV. Make no Suggestion with Confirmation
- ۷. Halt with Error
- **Prompt for Suggestion Handling** VI.
- 4. Configure the Items you wish to use with default Bin picking. To do this you must specify the default Bin for each Item. Go to Departments  $\rightarrow$  Warehouse  $\rightarrow$  Planning & Execution  $\rightarrow$  Items.



5. Select Items to display the Items List.

Items 🔹			Type to filter (F3)	No.
Description	Description 2	Pack Size	Base Unit of Measure	Quantity on Hand
Chocolate Sryup	Nestle Quick	12 / 22 oz	CASE	3,471
Tea	Assorted Herbal	24 / 3 oz	CASE	421
Napkins, Napkins, Napkins,	Decorated Party	24 / 6 packs of 1	L6 CASE	1,188
Health and Beauty	Orajel Rinse	24 / 16 oz packs	CASE	107
Sauce	Marinara	6 / 6 lb 10 oz ca	ns CASE	260
Conditioner	Released-Feeding America	4 / 25.4 oz bottl	es CASE	468

6. Edit the Item you wish to configure for default Bin picking. Then select Navigate  $\rightarrow$  Default Bins.



7. The Item Location Default Bins page will be displayed. Enter the Location Code for the Location you are configuring for default Bin picking. Next enter the default Bin for the item in the Bin Code field. The Bin you specify here **must** have "Pick" checked for its related Bin Type.



8. Repeat steps 1 through 8 for as many Locations and items for which you wish to configure default Bin picking.

**Note:** The use Default Bin Picking requires a place holder WAP Template to be specified on the Location. However, it will not be utilized for placement suggestion provided the Item has been configured with an Item Location Default Bin. See related topics for additional information.

**Note:** Undesirable pick document numbering can occur when the Location has been configured to Allow Default Bin Picking and the following conditions are true.

- 1. Location is also configured to Create Picks By Zone Code.
- 2. The inventory required to fulfill the Agency Order line's demand resides in a Bin of type Put-Away.
- 3. The Inventory item residing in the Put-Away Bin does not have an Item Location Default Bin specified.

In this scenario, Ceres will utilize the WAP Template specified on the Location to determine the To-Bin Code and To-Zone Code. This will not necessarily be the Zone or Bin relevant to the desired Zone/FBC Storage Requirement number series. For this reason, care should be taken to accurately represent the desired To-Bin Code and To-Zone Code on the WAP (Movement Worksheet) prior to creating pick documents. See related topics for additional information.

#### **Using Default Bin Picking**

For this example a new item (named "Default Pick") is being used. This Item has been configured for Default Bin Picking in bin 01-100-A for the KAN Location

The inventory level for the "Default Pick" item consists of two pallets: pallet 1305-00861 residing in the Pick Bin 01-100-a and pallet 1305-00862 residing in the Put-Away Bin 01-101-B each has a quantity of 10.

The use of Default Bin Picking begins with the creation, inventory request and release of an Agency Order (see the Agency Order Overview for additional information).

AO-004	82 · Mirror Inc	2.										
General												
Shipping												
Lines												
🛄 Line 🔻	🗲 Functions 👻 🗄	🖞 Order 👻 🎢 Find 🛛 Filte	r 🏹 Clear F	ilter								
III Line 🔻	🗲 Functions 👻 🗄 No.	🖞 Order 👻 🎢 Find Filte Description	r K Clear F Desc 2	ilter Pack Size	Available Quantity	Location Code	Zone Code	Pallet No.	Lot No.	Bin Code	Quanti	Unit of Measure Code

With our inventory level being what it is, if we were to create a pick document for our order, Ceres would only suggest 1 fully qualified inventory line on our pick document. This is true because we have a demand of 20 on our order but only 10 available in Pick Bins. Moreover, we have not yet run the Create WAP process to represent our order on the WAP.

This illustrates a key difference in the Agency Order fulfillment methodology when using Default Bin Picking.

Default Bin Picking	Non-Default Bin Picking					
1. Create and release Agency Orders	1. Create and release Agency Orders					
2. Run the Create WAP process	2. Run the Create WAP process					
3. WAP is retained (not posted)	3. Register the WAP					
4. Create pick documents	4. Create pick documents					
5. Handle the pick documents	5. Handle and post pick documents					
6. Register the WAP						
7. Post the pick documents						

#### **Creating a Warehouse Activity Plan (WAP)**

To create suggested movements via a WAP:

1. Go to Departments  $\rightarrow$  Warehouse  $\rightarrow$  Planning & Execution  $\rightarrow$  Movement Worksheets.



2. Select Movement Worksheets to display the Movement Worksheet. Be sure you are in a batch related to the Location you are working with and then select Actions  $\rightarrow$  Create WAP.

Į	📶 Edit - Movement Worksheet - WAP-KAN1											
	•	HOME	ACTIONS	NAVIGATE			$\bigcirc$					0
	[	1.3.3				a		Clear WAP Lines				
l	Auto H	fill Qty. to Iandle	Delete Qty. to Handle	Get Bin Content	Calculate Bin Replenishment	Calc. Inventory Replenishment	Create WAP	Create Movement	Register Movements	Worksheet Item Agency	rs on / Orders	
l			Functions		Calcu	ılate	$\bigcirc$	Create	Registering	Print		

3. Provide the desired filter criteria to limit the WAP to the desired Agency Orders and click the OK button. At a minimum the Agency Orders to be included must be in the Released status.

Edit - Create Whse. Activity Plan	- • •
✓ ACTIONS	0
Clear Filter Page	
Agency Order	~
Show results:	
X Where Shipment Date  is 08/13/14	
X And Shipment Method Code 🔻 is	
🗙 And No. 🔻 is Enter a value.	
X And Order Handling Group Code ▼ is Enter a value.	
X And Order Routing Group Code 🔻 is Enter a value.	
+ Add Filter	
Limit totals to: + Add Filter	
ОК	Cancel

Below illustrates the results of the Create WAP process with our sample Agency Order. Note that pallet 1305-00862 (which currently resides in a put- away bin) was suggested and that the 01-101-B Bin was suggested as the "To Bin Code". This is true because the 01-101-B Bin is specified as our default Bin for the Item.

Movement	Worksheet 🔹					Type to filter (F3)	Item No.	-	<b>→</b> ∨
								No filters app	olied
Name:	WAP-KAN1 -								
Location Code:	KAN								
Sorting Method:	From Bin Code		•						
Item No.	Description	From Zone Code	To Zone Code	Pallet No.	Full Pallet Order	Lot No.	From Bin Code	To Bin Code	Due Date
PICK ITEM	Pefault Pick Item	DRY	DRY	1305-00862	No	LOT-03138	01-101-B	01-100-A	

Below illustrates the pick document that was created. Refer to the Agency Order Overview and Inventory Picks Procedure Documents for additional information on creating pick documents.

Invt. Pick · IP	D-02508													
General														
Lines														
🗲 Functions 👻 [	🛛 Line 🔹 🎢	Find Fi	lter 🛛 ҃ 🔍 Clear Filter											
Line No.	Source No.	Action Type	Item No.	•	Description	Pack Size	Pallet No.	Lot No.	Zone Code	Current Bin	Bin Code	*	Quantity	Unit of Measure Code
10000	AO-00482	Take	DEFAULT PICK ITEM		Default Pick Item		1305-00861	LOT-03138	DRY	01-100-A	01-100-A		10	CASE
20000	AO-00482	Take	DEFAULT PICK ITEM		Default Pick Item		1305-00862	LOT-03138	DRY	01-101-B	01-100-A		10	CASE

The second line on the pick document is of particular interest as it contains a fully qualified inventory suggestion for pallet 1305-00862 from Bin 01-100-A. As we can see from our WAP screen shot above, this pallet does not in reside in Bin 01-100-A; it resides in Bin 01-101-B. So in we are in a manner of speaking, "floating" our inventory so that the pick document printing can move forward prior to registering the WAP and actually moving the pallet down.

It is important to note that Ceres will suggest inventory currently residing in Pick Bins first and in the case where insufficient inventory exists in such Bins, Ceres will then suggest inventory represented for the Agency Order on the WAP utilizing the default Bin configuration for the Item.

**Note**: That if we attempt to post the pick document at this point, Ceres will present an error message similar to the one shown below. This is a normal error message in the default Bin picking methodology as the WAP should be registered prior to posting a pick document that contains "floating" inventory.



To resolve, navigate back to the WAP and at a minimum, register the line or lines related to pick documents containing "floating" inventory.

During the WAP register process Ceres will attempt to correlate WAP lines to inventory pick lines. When found, Ceres will update the Bin Code on the pick document with the value of the To-Bin Code on the WAP line. This Bin code may be the Default Bin Code the WAP line was originally created with but in some cases, it may have been change on the WAP and thus it is necessary to update the pick document line accordingly so that sufficient and fully qualified inventory exists in the Bin during the posting of the pick document.

Invt. Pick · IPD-02508

General											
Lines											
🗲 Functions 👻 🛛	🛛 Line 🔹 👫	Find F	ilter 🛛 🖳 Clear Filter								
Line No.	Source No.	Action Type	Item No.	Description	Pack Size	Pallet No.	Lot No.	Zone Co	ode Current Bin	Bin Code	Quantity
10000	AO-00482	Take	DEFAULT PICK ITEM	Default Pick Item		1305-00861	LOT-03138	DRY	01-100-A	01-100-A	10
20000	AO-00482	Take	DEFAULT PICK ITEM	Default Pick Item		1305-00862	LOT-03138	DRY	01-100-A	01-100-A	10

**Note:** When using default pick bins, if it becomes necessary to select a different pallet then the one specified on the inventory pick document, Ceres will check the WAP for that pallet. If the newly selected pallet is on the WAP, then the bin on the inventory pick will be changed to the destination bin of pallet on the WAP. This assumes that the pallet will eventually be dropped to the destination bin and will subsequently be shipped from the destination pick bin. On the inventory pick, Ceres displays both the current bin and the default pick bin.

# Warehouse Activity Plan Enhancements

#### **Continuous WAP Suggestions for Released Agency Orders**

Continuous WAP suggestion enhancements is related to the Default Bin Picking described above. However, it can also be utilized as standalone functionality. A food bank may desire to continually create WAP suggestions for the purpose of adding lines to a released Agency Order when that order is represented on the WAP. Additionally, a user may wish to create the WAP in increments to reflect the true fulfillment methodology or activity for Agency Orders.

Configuring Ceres to allow for a released Agency Order to be reopened when that order is represented on the WAP requires enabling the Allow Picks when WAP Exists setup option found on the Bin Policies FastTab of the Location Card as shown below. Once the Agency Order has been reopened a user may:

- a. Add new lines to the order.
- b. Modify existing lines if and only if that line is not represented on the WAP and a related pick line does not exist.
- c. Delete existing lines if and only if that line is not represented on the WAP and a related pick line does not exist.

The Agency Order can again be released and the Create WAP process can again be run to address the additional demand for the order. The Create WAP process will consider what is already in the plan and will not address exiting lines that already meet the current demand need.

**Note**: An additional enhancement allows for the deletion of individual WAP lines without the need to run the Clear WAP process.

Bin Policies			^
Special Equipment: Bin Capacity Policy: Allow Breakbulk:	▼ Never Check Ca ▼	Pick Always Create Pick Line: Pick According to FEFO:	
Ceres Consider Pallet Empty %: Consider Pallet Full %:	0.00	Allow Picks when WAP Exists: Allow Default Bin Picking. Default Pick Bin Exception:	V V Use WAP Sugges ↓
Default Pallet Qty. on AO Opt.: <b>Put-away</b> Put-away Template Code: Always Create Put-away Line:	• •	No Bin Suggestion on WAP: Allow Pick from Put-Away Bin: Update Pick Line Bin from WAP: ADCS Prevent Pallet Diff Items:	

In terms of creating WAP line incrementally to reflect the true fulfillment methodology or activity for Agency Orders, two new filter fields have been added to the Create Whse Activity Plan Page; Order Handling Group Code and Order Routing Group Code. These new fields as well as any other standard filtering field on the Agency Order header can be used to limit the WAP run to specific orders.

Edit - Create Whse. Activity Plan	
<ul> <li>ACTIONS</li> </ul>	?
Clear Filter Page	
Agency Order	^
Show results:	
× Where Shipment Date ▼ is 08/13/14	
X And Shipment Method Code 🔻 is	
🗙 And No. 🔻 is Enter a value.	
And Order Handling Group Code 🔻 is Enter a value.	
And Order Routing Group Code 🔻 is Enter a value.	1
+ Add Filter	
Limit totals to: + Add Filter	
ОК	Cancel

# Pick Creation Enhancements

#### **Picking Sequence Numbers**

Ceres provides the Picking Sequence No field on the Bin record. The sequence numbers specified here will be used on the Picking List report to provide directed picking with regard to the sequence that has been defined.

# **Configuring Ceres for Picking Sequence Numbers**

1. Navigate to the Location related to the Bins for which you wish to configure picking sequences from Departments  $\rightarrow$  Warehouse  $\rightarrow$  Administration  $\rightarrow$  Setup  $\rightarrow$  Locations.



2. Double-click on the Location you want to view and then select Home  $\rightarrow$  Bins.



- 3. The Bin List will display Bins for the Location.
- 4. Specify the sequence for each Bin. Note that the Picking Sequence No should be specified for all Bins within a Location. Bins with a zero value for the picking sequence will cause the Picking List report to display them ahead of non-zero picking sequences.

📶 Edit - Bins - Location KAN												
- HOME	NAVIGATE											0
New Vie New Vie	ew Edit De st List Manage	elete Show as List	Show as Chart iew	OneNote Notes L Show Attached	inks Refresh	Clear Filter Page						
Bins •						-	Type to	filter (F3)	Location Code		•   •	~
										Filt	er: KAN	_
Locat Code 🔺	Zone Code	Code	Bin Type Code	Bin Ranking	Row No.	Picking Sequence No.	Allow Mixed Item	Alt Code	Bin Class Code	Max. Pallets	Emp	v c
KAN	DRY	0	HOLDING	0	0	7			DRY	1		=
KAN	FREEZER	00	HOLDING	0	0	40			FRZ	3		
KAN	COOLER	01	HOLDING	0	0	32			CLR	1		
KAN	DRY	01-100-A	PICK	2	1	6			DRY	1		
KAN	DRY	01-100-B	PICK	1	1	6			DRY	1		
KAN	DRY	01-101-A	STORAGE	0	1	6			DRY	3		
KAN	DRY	01-101-B	STORAGE	0	1	6			DRY	3		
KAN	DRY	01-101-C	STORAGE	0	1				DRY	3		

5. Once pick documents have been created you can print / preview the Picking List report from the pick document. The example below illustrates that use of the Picking Sequence numbers that have been configured for this example.

**Note**: Ceres provides picking sequence number sorting functionality for all pick generation settings. However the importance that the picking sequence number plays in the sorting differs depending upon the "Create Picks By" setup option specified for the Location as well as the New Page Option setting on the Picking List report itself. Refer to the Location overview, Agency Order Processing, and Pick Generation Enhancements for additional information.

Picking List         11/19/2012 12           Ceres 2009 on SP1 NO Branches         Par           SWPRC         SWPRC									12:59 PM Page 1 ROS\DCC	
Warehouse Activity Header: No.: IPK-0747										
Location Code No.			12 IPK-0747							
Source No.	Shipment Date	Item No. / Zone or FBC	Description / Description 2 / Pack Size	Lot No.	Pallet No.	Bin Code	Qty. (Base)	Unit of Measure Code	Qty. Handled	
AOR-0734	11/15/2012	01BAR9 12-PUT-C	Bars, Crunchy Granola Chocolate ~ 144/2 CT	LOT-0625		12-PUT-1	1	CASE		
AOR-0734	11/15/2012	163 12-PKG	Juice, Cranberry ~ 12/16 oz	LOT-0795	PAL-2408	12-PKG-1	1	CASE		
AOR-0734	11/15/2012	01BAR10 12-PKD	Bars, Crunchy Granola Peanut Butter Chocolate ~ 114/2 CT	LOT-0911	PAL-2632	12-PKD-1	1	CASE		
AOR-0734	11/15/2012	01BAR10 12-PKD	Bars, Crunchy Granola Peanut Butter Chocolate ~ 114/2 CT	LOT-0911	PAL-2632	12-PKD-1	1	CASE		
AOR-0734	11/15/2012	01BAR10 12-PKD	Bars, Crunchy Granola Peanut Butter Chocolate ~ 114/2 CT	LOT-0911	PAL-2632	12-PKD-1	1	CASE		

#### **Cycle Count Notifications**

Occasionally the quantity residing in a Bin will differ from the quantity Ceres suggested on a pick document. Ceres provides the ability to report such discrepancies via Cycle Count Notifications. Cycle count notifications can be initiated manually from a pick document as well via ADCS Handhelds.

For ADCS Handhelds, an email notification will automatically be generated when the Qty. entered is less than what was on the pick document and will be triggered when the <Enter> key is pressed on the handheld.

**Note**: Users may still finish the pick utilizing the pallet consolidation functionality. Refer to related topics for additional information about ADCS enhancements.

When handling picks via the pick document, the email notification is a manual process.

#### **Configuring Cycle Count Notifications for Ceres**

**Note:** SMTP Email must be configured for the following functionality and is reviewed in the next section of this document.

To configure Cycle Count Notifications, go to Departments → Financial Management → Inventory
 → Setup → Cycle Count Notification Setup



2. The Cycle Count Notification Setup Page will be displayed.

📕 Edit - Cycle Count Notification Setup										
<ul> <li>HOME</li> </ul>									0	
View Edit	OneNote	Notes	Links	Refresh	Clear Filter	<ul> <li>→ Go to</li> <li>♦ Previous</li> <li>▶ Next</li> </ul>				
Cycle Count	Cycle Count Notification Setup									
Enabled: Notify Email Address 1: Notify Email Address 2:		✓ rickf@esopro.com karenk@esopro.com			Notify Email Address 3: Email Subject: Email Body:		rickf@esopro.com Cycle Count Required Please count the following:			
									ОК	

Enabled: Place a checkmark here is you wish to utilize Notifications.

**Notify Email Address 1:** Here you can provide the email address for the primary recipient of cycle count notifications.

**Notify Email Address 2:** Here you can provide the email address for the secondary recipient of cycle count notifications.

**Notify Email Address 1:** Here you can provide the email address for the tertiary recipient of cycle count notifications.

**Email Subject:** Here you can provide the text that will appear in the subject line of notification emails.

**Email Body:** Here you can provide the text that will appear in the body of notification emails.

#### **Using Cycle Count Notifications**

When a Bin quantity discrepancy is discovered related to a pick document's handling, you can initiation a cycle count notification by navigating on the pick document lines to  $\rightarrow$  Line  $\rightarrow$  Create Cycle Count Notification.

#### Invt. Pick · IPD-02508

General				
Lines				
🗲 Functions 👻 🛄 Line 🝷 🏦 Find 🛛 Filter 🏹 Clear Fil	ter			
Line No. 📄 Source Document Line Bin Contents List	-	Description	Pack Size	Pallet No.
1000	EM	Default Pick Item		1305-00861
2000C	EM	Default Pick Item		1305-00862

**Note**: Ceres will not report back to the initiating user the success of the notification email. However, the notification will be logged in Ceres.

To view the cycle count notifications, go to Departments  $\rightarrow$  Warehouse  $\rightarrow$  Inventory  $\rightarrow$  Lists  $\rightarrow$  Cycle Count Notifications.



The Cycle Count Notifications List will be displayed.

M Cycle Count Notifications - Microsoft Dynamics NAV							
← 🕞 ▼ 🔟 Finance Company → Departments → Warehouse → Inventory → Cycle Count Notifications							
HOME							
New Edit Delete Show as List	Show as the Chart View	neNote Notes	Links Refr	esh Clear Filter Page	Find		
Departments <ul> <li>Financial Management</li> <li>Agencies &amp; Receivables</li> </ul>	Cycle Cou	nt Notifica	ations -				
Purchase	Item No.	Date	Time	Entry			
Donation				INO.			
Warehouse     Orders & Contacts	65007	8/2/2012	6:44:10.327	1			
Planning & Execution	65007	8/2/2012	8:52:29.340	2			
Goods Handling Order by O	65007	8/2/2012	9:19:18.013	3			
Goods Handling Multiple O	19037	8/9/2012	4:51:29.390	4			
<ul> <li>Inventory</li> </ul>	6K749	11/8/2012	8:37:30.910	5			
Reports	15499	12/5/2012	5:03:20.347	6			
▷ GTIN	15499	12/5/2012	5:43:10.183	7			
Roadnet	15202	12/5/2012	5:43:10.823	8			
Appian	10588	12/11/2012	3:31:08.603	9			
Administration	16190	12/11/2012	3:31:13.910	10			

Additionally email notification(s) will be sent to the recipients as configured for the Cycle Count Notifications setup.

#### **Cycle Count Required**

John S. Colston Sent: Mon 11/19/2012 2:30 PM To: David C. Collins

Please count the following: Item No. 01BAR10 on 11/19/12 at 2:29:29 PM

#### **SMTP Mail Setup**

1. To configure SMTP Mail, go to Departments  $\rightarrow$  Administration  $\rightarrow$  IT Administration  $\rightarrow$  Services  $\rightarrow$  Administration  $\rightarrow$  SMTP Mail Setup.

Finance Company + Departments + Administration + IT Administration + Services +

Departments Services Financial Management Agencies & Receivable: Lists Purchase Web Services PAC Web Services Donation Service Connections Warehouse Integration Table Mappings Human Resources Integration Synchronization Jobs Roadnet Integration Synchronization Errors Appian Administration Administration Bank Data Conv. Service Setup IT Administration OCR Service Setup Data Deletion Document Exchange Service Setup Data Update Microsoft Dynamics CRM Connection Setup Payment Services Connection Setup Contact Creation SharePoint Connection Setup General SMTP Mail Setup Reports Social Engagement Setup Services Currency Exchange Rate Services Application Setup

2. The SMTP Mail Setup Page will be displayed.

📶 Edit - SMTP Mail Se	tup								
✓ HOME			0						
View Edit Or Manage	Notes Links	Refresh Clear Filter Page	to vious t						
SMTP Mail Setup									
SMTP Server:	radon.swpros.com	User ID:							
SMTP Server Port:	25	Password:							
Authentication:	Anonymous 👻	Secure Connection:							
			ОК						

**SMTP Server:** Here you specify the fully qualified domain name or the IP address of the email server.

**Authentication:** Here you specify the authentication type for users connecting to the SMTP Server.

**Anonymous:** Select this option if you do not require user ID and password credentials to authenticate to your SMTP Server.

**NTLM:** Select this option if you require Integrated Windows Authentication to your SMTP Server.

**Basic:** Select this option if you require connection based authentication to your SMTP Server.

**User ID:** Here you can specify the user ID that will be used to authenticate to your SMTP Server. This field is only applicable when using Basic Authentication.

**Password:** Here you can specify the password that will be used to authenticate to your SMTP Server. This field is only applicable when using Basic Authentication.

## **Related Topics:**

- 1. Agency Order Overview
- 2. Bin Overview
- 3. Inventory Picks
- 4. Item Overview
- 5. Location Overview
- 6. Order Handling Groups, Order Routing Groups
- 7. Physical Inventory Counts and Inventory Journal
- 8. Voxware Overview and Integration
- 9. Warehouse Activity Plan WAP
- 10. Warehouse ADCS Barcode Processing
- 11. Zone Overview